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Lock No. 1 (now known as Lock No. 4) is located on the south bank of the
North New River Canal approximately 54 miles north and east of the Canal's
origin at Lake Okeechobee. The structure consists of a single lock about 149'
long with a wing dam extending to the north and connected to a large movable
sluice dam. An earthen coffer dam has been constructed on the upstream side
of the lock wing-dam structure to protect it from upstream water pressure and
damage; this has effectively closed the lock to use.

The lock is constructed of parallel poured concrete walls which are 25!
apart. The walls are about 14' from top to foundation, measuring 6' thick at
the foundation and tapering in along the exterior to 3' at the top. Extending
south from the east end of the south wall is a small wing dam of poured con-
crete. This dam was used to retain the water in the space which was left un~
filled between the canal bank and the lock wall. The main wing dam of the com-
plex extends about 42' to the north from the west end of the north wall. Also
of poured concrete, the structure is strengthened by buttresses on the east, or
downstream side. A metal pipe handrail extends across the top of the wing dam,
a wooden catwalk which opens with the lock gates extends across the lock to
provide access to the wing dam.

Entry to the lock is controlled by paired wooden gates at either end
which also controls water level. - The gates close to form an interior angle of
142° and point upstream. Horizontal 12" x 12" timbers, spaced at each end with
12" x 12" and 12" x 10" blocks all spiKed together using 3 1/2" x 3/8" strap
iron, form the main gate structure. The gates are sheathed on one side, the
upstream (west) side, with vertical 2" x 8" boards nailed in a butt joint
forming a water-tight seal. At the base of each gate is a hand operated but-
terfly valve which is used to control the water level in the lock when a boat
is being raised or lowered. -

The gates were operated by a geared rack and pinion mechanism. The racks
which were connected to the center of the gates no longer remain. The geared
pinion mechanism does survive and could@ be made operational.

There are two structures which are adjacent to the lock and which have
historical association with it. . To’the southwest of the lock is a poured con-
crete U.S5.G.S. recording station which remains in use and was constructed
about the time of the lock. Completing the complex is the lock tender's- quar-
ters which is south of the control structure. This building is a small, wood
frame bungalow with clapboard siding and a low, gable roof supported by simple
eave brackets. The rectangular building has a shed roof porch extending to the
west of the house. A carport is located to the east under a shed roof which is
an extension of the main roof. The current structure does not bear any resem-
blance to plans which exist for the original cottage designed for the lock.
Local tradition insists that this building is the original dwelling which has
been altered. This cannot be determined for certain withoutmarmore:extensive
examination of the building. '
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The Everglades drainage program which was begun in 1905 has probably had
a greater historical and continued impact on South Florida than any other
single factor. One of the canals, the North New River Canal was, in the
early years, a major transportation artery between Ft. Lauderdale and Lake
Okeechobee. In order to make the canal usefulefor transportation, locks had
to be constructed.

Lock No. 1 at the south end of the canal was the first to be built on the
canal as well as in South Florida. It remains the best preserved of all of
the surviving locks in the canal system in South Florida.

After many years of abortive public and private efforts at draining the
Everglades, the State of Florida in 1905 established the Everglades Drainage
District and authorized taxation of local landowners for the cost of drainage.
Drainage was to be accomplished by lowering the waters of Lake Okeechobee and
reducing the water level in the Everglades through the use of canals. It was
hoped that this act would result in the creation of 3,000,000 acres of fer-
tile, habitable land upon which could be raised "many tropical fruits that
grow in [the] area and not elsewhere in the United States" (Everglades of
Florida, p. 18).

Dredging of the needed canals bedan in July 1906 with the construction
of the dredges Everglades and Okeechobee on the North New River Canal (Ever-
dlades, p. 16). 1In 1909 it was determined that the state would let contracts
to private construction firms to complete the dredging operation. 1In doing
this it was hoped that the canal construction would move along at a quicker
pace. In June 1910, the Board of Drainage Commissioners accepted a bid from
the Furst-Clark Construction Company of Baltimore, Maryland for the construc-
tion of fiwe canals; the North New River Canal, the South New River Canal,
Miami Canal and the Gulf Coast Canal.

Within nine months after the Furst-Clark Construction Company began op-
erations it was determined that permanent locks would have to be built on the
canal in order to control the water level and allow water traffic access to
the land along the canal. On March 12, 1911, the company obtained an amend-
ment to their contract for the "placing of permanent locks in said canals"
(Everglades, 194-195, Minutes, p. 139). These locks were to be located on
the Miami._ Canal, South New River Canal and the North New River Canal. Each
structure was to be located at or near the head of tide water and would re-
place the existing earth and stone dams (Minutes, pp. 148-149). Work on
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these locks, including Lock No. 1 on the North New River Canal, was begun by
October 1911 (Minutes, p. 200). By March, 1912, the Lock No. 1 was opera-
tional (Minutes, p. 20). The following July it was decided that a caretaker's
house would be built at Lock No. 1 (Minutes, p. 58). A weather station was
ordered established at the lock in October 1912 (Minutes, pp. 101-105). &

. It has not been determined exadtly when the lock was open for river -
traffic, but the structure was being used regularly by September 1913 since
its toll receipts were used as a basis for projecting revenue to be received
from lock traffic (Minutes, pp. 332-333).

. The opening of the lock lead to an increased agricultural exploitation of
the newly drained land along the New River Canal. Produce grown in this area
and around Lake Okeechobee was brought down the canal through the locks to the
railroad at Ft. Lauderdale. An even more important cargo was Okeeachobee cat-
fish. New River was lined with fish houses, overhanging the river. The fish
were brought down by small launches which had box-like cabins for storing the
fish. Boats traversed the distance between the lake and Ft. Lauderdale in
groups. This made the trip go faster since more than one boat could get into
the hand operated lock and thus make its use more efficient. (Will, Pp.82=90)

. The locks also made it pos§ible for small steamboats to operate on a
regular basis between Ft. Lauderdale and the lake as well as Ft. Myers via the
Caloosahachee River. Regular scheduled steamers included the Suwannee, Lily
and Passing Thru. These boats carried passengers, cargo, and tourists up and
down the river. By 1926 the canals had shoaled to the point that boat traffic
was no longer practical and the waterway had been replaced by a railroad and
highway as the primary transportation artery to and from the lake. 1In that
year the locks were closed permanently and allowed to deteriorate due to the
lack of use. (Will, pp. 82-90)
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